
 

 

 

 

Workforce Board Meeting  
Pacific Retirement Services    Third Floor, Washington Room    1 W. Main St., Medford 
Thursday, December 15, 2016    2:00 – 5:00 pm  
+ post-meeting networking social 5:15p at 4 Daughters Irish Pub, 126 W Main St, Medford 
 

Video/Phone Conference access available at https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/656989573. Select your audio preference:  
1) Use telephone: +1 (646) 749-3131 Access Code: 656-989-573 (normal long distance charges will apply);  
2) Or, use computer microphone & speakers (headset is recommended to avoid reverb) 
 
 

Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order  (5m) Jessica Gomez     

 Welcome & Introductions       

 

2. Membership Update  (10-15m) Jessica, Jim Fong   

 Transitioning & New Members   
 Honoring Tamara Nordin 

 

3. Consent Agenda  -   Action Item     (5-10m) Jessica 
Consent agenda items are voted on as a block unless a member wishes to pull an agenda item(s) out for discussion 

a. Approval of Minutes  -  June 15 and September 15, 2016 RWP Meetings    

b. Approval of Revised Bylaws    

c. Approval of RWP Program Policies - the following attached and updated policies are required for the   

implementation of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) federal legislation  
 

 Allowable Costs Policy  Disaster Recovery Policy  Public Record Requests Policy  
 Record Retention, Maintenance, 

Disposition, Disclosure & 
Confidentiality Policy 

 Audit Policy 
 Cash Management Policy 

 Equal Opportunity & Non-
Discrimination Policy 

 Debt Collection Policy  Property Management Policy 

 
4. WorkSource Rogue Valley     

 Veteran’s Program & Award  (5m) Sherri Stratton, Chuck Hanger,  
 John Underwood 

 Governor Brown Coordination  -  Action Item  (15m)    Jim 

Site Visit, Letter to Workforce Boards & Next Steps Follow-Up   
The Governor’s first ever visit to a WorkSource Oregon Center occurred in Medford on October 14th.  
She applauded our region’s exceptional partnerships, leveraging of resources and streamlined 
service integration, and asked: “how can we create great partnerships like this throughout the 
State?” Her recent letter to Workforce Boards asks for similar recommendations. Our region, in 
partnership with the other Workforce Boards in the State, is preparing a response. RWP members 
are asked to provide input, guidance, insight and authorization. 

 

5. Workforce System  

 Dashboard    (20m)    Jim, Sherri, Dave Fricke 
Review & Finalize – Phase 1  
Draft dashboard of WSRV performance has been prepared for review, based on initial feedback 
from RWP members. We plan to use this as a starting point and create a template for creating a 
combined performance management dashboard for the entire workforce system. Finalization of 
this first dashboard will represent completion of phase 1. 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/656989573


 
 

The RWP is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

                                                           100 E. Main St., Suite A.  Medford, OR97501-6125   (541) 776-5100 

 

6. Sector Strategies   |      College & Careers for All    |      Workforce Partnerships 

 Rogue Tech Collective   (20m) Adam Cuppy, Trever Yarrish   

 Tech Tour   
60 Computer Science students from RCC, KCC, SOU & OIT spent Oct 28th touring and 
networking with tech companies in Ashland and downtown Medford. Over 75% came away 
with interests to explore career possibilities in the Rogue Valley.     
View: Tech Tour Video 2016     |   View:  Rogue Tech Industry Video 

 RCC Web Development Program Changes  
Update on changes underway to improve program and to significantly increase enrollment, 
with special recruitment efforts to high school students and WSRV customers as part of CC4A. 

 Governor Brown & Zeal Site Visit  

Report out of the Governor’s site visit to Zeal on Oct 14th.  
 

Break 
 

 Rogue Advanced Manufacturing Partnership (RAMP)  (20m)   Mike Donnelly, John Underwood,  
Industry leaders are focused on 3 key priorities: Norm Kester, Cathy Kemper-Pelle 

1. Recruiting and Maintaining a Skilled Workforce 
2. Manufacturing Awareness and Image Campaign 
3. Public Policy Advocacy – to school boards, BOLI, Legislature, etc. 

Immediate focus is on an industry survey to identify top Industry Recognized Certifications 
needed and linking these into K-20 curriculum to create improved career pathway capacities  
Take the survey: RAMP Industry Survey         

 

 Uniting Industry, Education & Workforce Efforts  (30m)   Norm, John, Dana Shumate, Kathy Trautman 
Our efforts are fragmented. A core group of our Business, Education & Workforce leaders are 
creating a unified approach with common messaging, branding and consolidated efforts.   
See: Project Scope & Outline  | Video: Connecting to Purpose  | Video: Defining Southern Oregon  | Video: A Rogue Life 

 

 Oregon Connections Rollout  (5m)   Jim, Dana, Julie Gillis  
Online matching platform for businesses to post opportunities for industry tours, job 
shadows, internships, class presentations, etc.; and for schools/WSRV to post requests for 
same. We’re piloting and creating operational standards for schools so students get 
needed classroom instruction/support and are prepared to benefit from CRLE’s. 
View it at: Oregon Connections 

 Traitify - 2 minute visually-based personalized career matching  (5m) Jim                     
https://medfordonestop.traitify.com/ 

 A Business Model - to sustain our efforts for next decade + (15-20m) Jessica 

 Careers in Gear  -  Register at: Careers in Gear   (5m) Deanna Wilson, Jen Perry 

 Chief Science Officer Project  (5m)   Allison Sweeny 

 STEM Teacher Externships Grant  (5m) Dana 
     

7. Other Business Jessica 

 

8. Adjourn Jessica 

*Post meeting networking social 5:15p at 4 Daughters Irish Pub, 126 W Main St, Medford 
 

= Documents attached or will be handed out at meeting 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1XSN_Lq4wGI
http://rogueworkforce.org/vimeo-video/rwf-tech-video-final-720p/
https://sou.co1.qualtrics.com/SE/?SID=SV_cuyfKYgWIQ8jU57)
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1cJLCGkWAUVjY7NZJ0uHHB4Agmorx21sF6gwIVbuIMrs/edit?usp=sharing
http://sho.co/185YP
https://spark.adobe.com/video/aUpbveDuEa4CM
https://spark.adobe.com/video/ekW8zVLLKBrsZ
https://oregonconnections.nepris.com/
https://medfordonestop.traitify.com/
http://rogueworkforce.org/uncategorized/careers-in-gear-is-ready-for-2017/


 
ACTION BRIEF 

 
 

To:           Rogue Valley Workforce Consortium  

From:      Jim Fong, Executive Director  

Date:       December 6, 2016  

Subject:  Appointments to Rogue Workforce Partnership - Workforce Development Board  

Background & Discussion 

Per the Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act of 2014 [Subpart B], Jackson and Josephine 
Counties is designated as one of nine regions of the State to function as a Workforce Development Area. 
“The purpose of identifying regions is to align workforce development activities and resources with 
larger regional economic development areas and available resources to provide coordinated and 
efficient services to both job seekers and employers.” 
 
WIOA [Subpart C] calls for the region’s Local Workforce Development Board to be “appointed by the 
chief elected official(s) in each local area in accordance with State criteria established under WIOA sec. 
107(b).”  The Rogue Valley Workforce Consortium (RVWC) was created through an intergovernmental 
agreement between Jackson and Josephine Counties to perform the functions, role and responsibilities 
of the chief elected official. 
 
To reappoint expiring positions and fill vacant positions (retroactive to July 1, 2016), the following slate 
of candidates has been developed for the RVWC’s consideration. 
 

 Name  Title Organization 

Re
ap

po
in

tm
en

t
 

Gregg Edwards Chief People Officer        ASANTE Health Systems 

Nikki Jones Owner   Express Employment Professionals 

Wes Brain Labor Representative SEIU 503  

Fred Holloway President Holloway Human Resource Management Consulting 

Scott Koch VP/Territory Manager Umpqua Bank 

N
ew

 A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 

Shawn Hogan   VP of Engineering Linx Technologies, Inc. 
Catherine Goslin   Director of Human Resources Rogue Valley Manor 
Kim Oveson   Human Resource Officer LaClinica   
Lance Corley   Inside Construction Director Crater Lake Electrical JATC  
Cathy Kemper-Pelle   President Rogue Community College 
Colleen Padilla   Executive Director SOREDI  
Kirk Kolb   Superintendent Grants Pass School District 
Linda Schott   President   Southern Oregon University 

 Nagi Naganathan President Oregon Institute of Technology 

 Joe Myers Vice President Pacific Electrical Contractors 
 

• The attached chart displays full membership and status of positions for the RWP - Workforce Board 
• New members will be assigned to staggered terms as appropriate / needed 
 
Recommended Action 

• Appoint the individuals listed above to the Rogue Workforce Partnership.  



              

2 

RWP Workforce Board    Membership & Positions                                                           v201601203 jf 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        Business  Representatives      Mandatory Majority  Labor Representatives (2)      Mandatory  (could add members) 
1 Jessica Gomez*   Founder & CEO               

RWP Chair 
Rogue Valley Microdevices Jon Flegel    Labor Representative IBEW Local 659  - International 

Brotherhood of Electrical Workers 
1 

2 Gregg Edwards*   Chief People Officer        
RWP Vice-Chair 

ASANTE Health Systems Wes Brain    Labor Representative SEIU 503 - Service Employees 
International Union 

2 

 Joint Apprenticeship Training Center (1)     Mandatory  (could add members) 
3 Michael Donnelly*   Materials & Facilities 

                                       Manager 
Carestream, Inc. Lance Corley    Inside Construction 

                             Director 
Crater Lake Electrical JATC –  
Joint Apprenticeship Training Committee 

3 

 Community-Based Organizations - with demonstrated experience & expertise in addressing the employment 
needs of individuals with barriers to employment - serve veterans, or individuals with disabilities  

4 Nikki Jones*    Owner   Express Employment 
Professionals 

_______________???   Easter Seals (Veterans) ??? 4 

5 Brent Kell    Executive Director Valley Immediate Care _______________???  Southern Oregon Goodwill 
Industries (Disabilities)??? 

5 

 Organizations - with demonstrated experience & expertise in addressing the employment, training, or education 
needs of eligible youth, including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-school youth 

6 John Underwood    Human Resources 
                                     Manager 

Timber Products _______________???  School District (from below)? 
(or Maslow Project ???) 

6 

7 Norm Kester    CEO Quantum Innovation _______________???  School District (from below)? 7 
8 Adam Cuppy    Co-Founder & COO Zeal Tom Drummond    Co-Director College Dreams ??? 8 
 Education & Training – Title II & Higher Education      Mandatory 
9 Chad Scott    Director Human Resources Fire Mountain Gems & Beads Cathy Kemper-Pelle    President Rogue Community College 9 
 Economic / Community Development      Mandatory 
10 Shawn Hogan    VP of Engineering Linx Technologies, Inc. Colleen Padilla    Executive Director SOREDI  10 

 OED / Wagner-Peyser      Mandatory 
11 Catherine Goslin    Director of Human 

Resources 
Rogue Valley Manor Sherri Stratton     Senior Manager  

 
Oregon Employment 
Department  

11 

 Vocational Rehabilitation      Mandatory 
12 Kim Oveson    Human Resource Officer LaClinica   Matthew Balkwill    Area Manager Office of Vocational 

Rehabilitation Division 
12 

 Optional Members  

13 Fred Holloway    President Holloway Human Resource 
Management Consulting 

Doug Mares     District Manager Oregon Department of 
Human Services  

13 

14 Scott Koch    VP/Territory Manager Umpqua Bank Scott Beveridge    Superintendent Southern Oregon Education 
Service District 

14 

15 Joe Myers   Vice President Pacific Electrical Contractors Brian Shumate    Superintendent Medford School District  15 
16 _______________???  _______________???  Kirk Kolb    Superintendent Grants Pass School District 16 
17 _______________???  _______________???  Teresa Sayre    Superintendent Phoenix-Talent School District 17 
18 _______________???  _______________???  Linda Schott    President  (Sue Walsh –proxy?) Southern Oregon University 18 
19 _______________???  _______________???  Nagi Naganathan President Oregon Tech 19 
20    

Total RWP Workforce Board Membership = 39 

Mandatory = WIOA Workforce Board Membership Requirement         |         ∗  =  Corporate Director         |           =  Proposed New Member         |         =   Possible Candidate to be Contacted or Vacant Position 

Mandatory     
Must be 
20% of 
Workforce 
Board 



              

3 

 

WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT  
 

SEC. 3. DEFINITIONS. 
 
(10) COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION.—The term ‘‘community-based organization’’ means a private nonprofit organization (which may include a faith-based 
organization), that is representative of a community or a significant segment of a community and that has demonstrated expertise and effectiveness in the field of 
workforce development.  
  
(11) COMPETITIVE INTEGRATED EMPLOYMENT.—The term ‘‘competitive integrated employment’’ has the meaning given the term in section 7 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 705), for individuals with disabilities. 
 
 

SEC. 107. LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARDS. 

(2) COMPOSITION.—Such criteria shall require that, at a minimum— 

(A) a majority of the members of each local board shall be representatives of business in the local area, who— 

(i) are owners of businesses, chief executives or operating officers of businesses, or other business executives or employers with optimum policymaking or hiring 
authority; 
(ii) represent businesses, including small businesses, or organizations representing businesses described in this clause, that provide employment opportunities 
that, at a minimum, include high-quality, work-relevant training and development in in-demand industry sectors or occupations in the local area; and 

(iii) are appointed from among individuals nominated by local business organizations and business trade associations; 

(B) not less than 20 percent of the members of each local board shall be representatives of the workforce within the local area, who— 

(i) shall include representatives of labor organizations (for a local area in which employees are represented by labor organizations), who have been nominated by 
local labor federations, or (for a local area in which no employees are represented by such organizations) other representatives of employees; 

(ii) shall include a representative, who shall be a member of a labor organization or a training director, from a joint labor-management apprenticeship program, 
or if no such joint program exists in the area, such a representative of an apprenticeship program in the area, if such a program exists; 

(iii) may include representatives of community based organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment needs of 
individuals with barriers to employment, including organizations that serve veterans or that provide or support competitive integrated employment for individuals 
with disabilities; and 

(iv) may include representatives of organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment, training, or education needs 
of eligible youth, including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-school youth; 
 

(C) each local board shall include representatives of entities administering education and training activities in the local area, who— 

(i) shall include a representative of eligible providers administering adult education and literacy activities under title II; 

(ii) shall include a representative of institutions of higher education providing workforce investment activities (including community colleges); 



              

4 

(iii) may include representatives of local educational agencies, and of community-based organizations with demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing 
the education or training needs of individuals with barriers to employment; 
 

(D) each local board shall include representatives of governmental and economic and community development entities serving the local area, who— 

(i) shall include a representative of economic and community development entities; 

(ii) shall include an appropriate representative from the State employment service office under the Wagner-Peyser Act (29 U.S.C. 49 et seq.) serving the local 
area; 

(iii) shall include an appropriate representative of the programs carried out under title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 720 et seq.), other than 
section 112 or part C of that title (29 U.S.C. 732, 741), serving the local area; 

(iv) may include representatives of agencies or entities administering programs serving the local area relating to transportation, housing, and public assistance; 
and 
 (v) may include representatives of philanthropic organizations serving the local area; and 
 

(E) each local board may include such other individuals or representatives of entities as the chief elected official in the local area may determine to be appropriate     
 



                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                           
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

ROGUE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP 
June 15, 2016 

Pacific Retirement Services – Third Floor, Washington Room 
1 W. Main St., Medford, OR 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    
Adam Cuppy*, Michael Donnelly*, John Higgins*, Brent Kell, Norm Kester, Doug Mares, Tamara Nordin, Chad 
Scott, Brian Shumate, Sherri Stratton, John Underwood, Susan Walsh 
 

*= via phone/videoconference   
QUORUM PRESENT: Yes    
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Oregon Employment Department: Tamara Schroeder, Ainoura Oussenbec, Guy Tauer, Josh Morell 
Department of Human Services: Melissa Wolff 
Oregon Vocational Rehabilitation: Kristi Hyman 
Rogue Community College: Daniella Bivens, Bill Jiron, Serena St. Clair 
ResCare Workforce Services: Tabitha Carlson 
Southern Oregon Goodwill Industries – Greg Lemhouse 
Junior Achievement – Deanna Wilson 
Business Oregon -  Larry Holzgang 
College Dreams -  Jen Perry* 
AFL/CIO – Mark Warne 
BBSI- Suz Montemayor, Joe Rossi 
Rogue Workforce Partnership:  Aurora King, Dana Shumate, Rene’ Brandon, Sherri Emitte, Tami Allison, Jim 
Fong 
    
1) CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS  

The RWP meeting was called to order by Tamara Nordin at 2:06 pm. Both Chair and Vice-Chair were not in 
attendance. 
 
 

2) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
MATT BALKWILL MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY BRENT 
KELL AND APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 
     

3) WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT (WIOA) 
 
PY 15 & PY 16 Program Updates, Integration & Coordination  
 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2016 
Page | 2 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

 
 
Aurora kicked off this part of the agenda by addressing questions raised around metrics and indicating that 
we will be focusing our efforts in the coming year on reporting out previous year’s data, tracking different 
local elements to establish the validity of the structure, and how people are moving through the One Stop 
Centers. “The plan for next quarter is to report out on last year’s data as well as our PY 16 targets”, Aurora 
stated. Aurora went on to say that local measures have been put in place with ResCare such as training-
related placements, retention, and OJT investments in sector strategy occupations. 
 
Norm inquired as to how the information is being gathered and whether we are getting feedback from 
employers on what the “failure” is, indicating that the issue may not be education, but in fact be soft skills 
such as attendance. Aurora responded by saying that we do not currently have a systemized approach for 
gathering this information; however, we definitely want to implement one. Tabitha added that some 
feedback from employers is being tracked in a spreadsheet. Tamara added the importance of establishing 
the relationships with employers in order to obtain that feedback.  
 
Sherri Emitte referred the group to the handout in today’s packet titled Funding and Activity Summary. 
This summary represents only funds that come directly to the Workforce Board. She noted that funding is 
increasing and there are some rollover funds that have not been included in this summary to date. Aurora 
added that we will talk later about BTWO (Back to Work Oregon) which allows up to 15% of the funds to 
be spent on employed workers. Rene’ added that the increase in youth funding is especially important and 
is an opportunity to strategically invest to serve more youth and generate even greater outcomes. Other 
youth serving organizations, such as Maslow Project and other youth serving organizations could be tied 
into this work as well,” stated Rene’. Sherri closed by saying that the goal is provide a systems overview of 
this information to the board.  
 
Jim encouraged the group to let us know if they are interested in an opportunity to engage with other 
community partners to discuss changes in either the adult or youth investment strategies - what’s been 
working, what’s not, etc. 
 
Title V – Oregon Employment Department  
Wagner-Peyer & SEDAF (State Employment Department Administration Fund) 
 

Sherri Stratton, Senior Manager of Oregon Employment Department, addressed the group indicating she 
has been in her new role for a little over a year and the real heavy lifting has been about integrating 
systems, and working collaboratively to streamline and be a better resource to employers as well as job 
seekers. “A lot is going on and a lot of resources are at the table,” Sherri added. The focus is on taking the 
WorkSource Operational Standards, pooling resources, removing ourselves from siloed-thinking, and 
asking ourselves how are we helping any customer who comes through the door to get into the pipeline; 
as well as doing a better job of making referrals to job listings by coordinating systems and identifying the 
talent pool.  
 
On a related note, Jim spoke briefly about the grant that RCC submitted having to do with the Oregon 
Talent Council that would provide students, unemployed and incumbent workers with the applied skills 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2016 
Page | 3 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

and experience that significantly increase their employability.  John Underwood added that this grant is 
scalable and does not only apply to wood products, but to other sectors as well, and the importance of 
getting the current workforce connected and ready to fill in.  
 
Department of Human Services  
TANF-JOBS, SNAP 50/50 
 

In addition to the TANF-JOBS and SNAP 50/50 programs, Melissa introduced two training investment / 
scholarship opportunity programs:  

• SOHOPE (Southern Oregon Health Occupations Poverty Elimination) grant. This grant award is a 5 year 
$14.5 million dollar grant from the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services designed to serve 
low-income individuals in Jackson and Josephine Counties and provides access to healthcare education 
and training programs that may result in a long-term, living wage job in the healthcare sector. This 
grant includes wrap-around support services, such as such as transportation and childcare support, 
that are often barriers for low-income student success. About 1/3 of participants will need to be in a 
control group. Clients randomly assigned to the control group will be able to access the REACH grant 
resources. 

• REACH (Rogue Educational Achievement) – is another training investment and scholarship grant 
program. This grant was spearheaded by Senator Alan Bates and serves 150 TANF, or recent TANF-
leaver families. As the Co-Chair of the Human Services Subcommittee of the Ways & Means 
Committee, Senator Bates was seeking to find new ways to improve the TANF program’s capacity to 
help clients move out of poverty.  

REACH provides training scholarships in a range of career pathways, including advanced 
manufacturing, information technology and healthcare. The program has rolling enrollment, and has 
had 46 total participants to date. Melissa shared a data handout with the group and talked about 
attending the first REACH graduation. “It was inspiring to be in a room of people who have gone 
through rough life circumstances and see them with their families celebrating their accomplishment”, 
Melissa stated. 

 
Jim also reported that SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) 50/50 is a program rolling out 
statewide. Local or state non-federal funds can be used as a match to draw down additional federal funds. 
For WorkSource Oregon, we’ll be leveraging the SEDAF funds from OED to leverage additional resources 
that will compound over time.  Workgroups are being convened and more information will be brought to 
the RWP as this program develops. 
 
Title II – Adult Basic Skills 
 

Jim reported that a work group of organizations who provide Adult Basic Skills services has been meeting 
for several months to work on integrated program planning and mapping out of the ABS system to better 
serve customers. This group includes Laurie Rydell (recently retiring), Julie Rossi and Serena St. Clair from 
RCC, Tabitha Carlson and WSRV staff from ResCare, and Greg Lemhouse and staff from Southern Oregon 
Goodwill Industries.  
The goal is to work as a streamlined system to better serve adults or youth dropouts who are seeking to 
improve their basic skills in reading and math, and prepare for taking the GED (or in some cases, finish 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2016 
Page | 4 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

their high school diplomas).  We also want to create natural career pathway connections for GED students 
so that more of them will continue into further skills-building training.  
 
“There is a lot of overlap and we need to pinpoint student needs and point them in the right direction”, 
Greg Lemhouse stated. Serena St. Clair added that it has been very rewarding to see the RCC, WorkSource 
Rogue Valley and SOGI programs provide complimentary services that meet the diverse needs of the 
population. Adult Basic Skills covers GED as well as ESL (English as a Second Language). And, under WIOA, 
GED is no longer an outcome in itself, it is GED Plus. This would also serve our community in helping to 
achieve Oregon’s 40/40/20 goals. 
 
Sherri Stratton indicated that she would start attending these ABE/Title II meetings in the future and 
would be talking about tapping into Spanish-speaking job seekers and what we are do9ing in regard to ESL 
that could be added. 
 
Title IV – Vocational Rehabilitation Services        

 Vocational Rehabilitation Services work with people who have medically-related barriers to employment.  
 “Vocational Rehabilitation crosses all programs,” stated Matt Balkwill. Matt went on to report that VR 
now has a mandate to support youth programs (ages 14-24) by addressing medical barriers, and that the 
estimate is that approximately 400 students in the region will graduate being identified with medically-
related barriers. Vocational Rehabilitation is not bound by programmatic constraints and bottom line is 
what the employee needs. Last year 1.6 million dollars was spent on goods and services, 268 people 
successfully exited out of the program, and approximately 55% were retained through the 2nd quarter of 
employment.  
 
Summary 
Jim wrapped up this portion of the agenda by saying that he has not seen this unique level of systems 
alignment anywhere else in the state, and asks that the board help guide us on our investment strategies, 
and help ground the system to employer needs. The long-term goal is to get longitudinal and cohort-based 
data to more effectively manage all of these programs as a comprehensive workforce system. 
 
Norm indicated that he is encouraged by the discussion and would like to see comparable on dollars and 
time saved and relationship to success. 
        
 

4) REFINING OUR MISSION STATEMENT 
 

RWP members worked on the mission and vision statement activity.  Comments are as follows as well as 
listed on the activity sheet: 

• The vision is saying the same thing as the mission  
• Do we need a vision statement 
• Vision represents the end result 
• The mission explains how we get to the end result 
• Mission should lineup with the ultimate vision 
• Vision casting is where you get the hope and excitement 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2016 
Page | 5 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

• Mission is what you “are” 
• Vision is “what you aspire to be” – words need to reflect this 
• Does it apply more to the business, or full and meaningful employment to those who seek it?  
• Is it to grow business, individuals, or both? (Jim’s response is that it is both; but with a top priority 

of meeting business needs to create a demand-driven workforce & education / training system)  
• Desire to give people the skillset necessary to allow them to achieve the aspirations that align with 

the local business. 
• Goal is to have dollars come back to the community 
• Global economy is the mission 
• Regional economy is the vision  
• Should say “local economy” in the mission 
• Strong regional business community that provides quality jobs… (Matt will key up and get wording 

to Jim) 
 

Next steps: RWP staff will consolidate and clean-up the input from RWP members and bring it to an 
upcoming Corporate Directors meeting for refinement and to edit down to a final recommendation. A 
refined version of the mission, vision and promise statements will then be brought back to the September 
15th Workforce Board meeting for final review and approval. 

 
 

5) CAREERS IN GEAR & OTHER CAREER NETWORKING EVENTS 
 

Deanna Wilson reported on the great Careers in Gear event this year, and indicated that the hope is to 
make it even more robust next year, and to grow it in partnership with SHRM and other supporters in the 
community. She indicated that 649 students attended this year and that the event was changed up a little 
to include different sessions, etc.  Deanna thanked everyone for their support.  
 
Jim added that a debriefing will take place that will include SHRM. We want to explore ways build upon the 
success of Careers in Gear, and expand opportunities for more career-seekers to network with employers. 
We also want to give a broader array of employers to connect with the talent pipeline of both youth and 
adult job/career-seekers. 
 
Some suggestions from business leaders included: 

• Using Careers in Gear venue and build off of it to bring adults in, perhaps in the evening. Staffing of 
the exhibitors would need to change to relate more to the adult job seeker. 

• Keep as a one day event as opposed to two or more different times – small employers struggle to 
send employees more than once a year. 

Other suggestions included: 
• Be smart and efficient about the event (s) 
• Dovetail on Careers in Gear on the front end to get long time exhibitors, and then branch out 
• Marketing the event in the right way will bring people from other areas who want to live here 
• Partner with RCC and the military for job fairs 

 
Matt Balkwill and Tamara Schroeder asked to be added to the Career Networking Events group. 

 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2016 
Page | 6 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

SOREDI convened a meeting to debrief the recent industry tour with the conversation focusing on how to 
create a cultural change in how we connect with each other, and creating venues where people can find 
out information about something they know nothing about. 

 
        

6) COLLEGE AND CAREER FOR ALL IMPLEMENTATION 
 

Jim showed a PowerPoint presentation from the last College and Career for All partner meeting. 
Approximately 1.8 million dollars in grant funds from STEM, Dual-Credit and CTE-Revitalization were 
awarded in Josephine, Jackson, and Klamath counties. Funding timeline is through June 30, 2017. SOESD is 
project managing most of these grants. If you would like to be involved, contact Dana Shumate. 
 
John Higgins talked about STEM Academy – 45 slots for kids to get STEM experience. The event sold out 
within a week and a half. Seventh – 9th graders coming on campus four days to work. The hope is to 
expand next year.  
 
All school districts as well as informal education partners (after school) will have access to hands-on 
Advanced Manufacturing equipment such as 3-D printers, laser engravers, drones, etc.,. Two mobile labs 
are being fit-up for use throughout the region to promote these high-tech careers.  
 
This is somewhat similar in concept to Junior Achievement statewide rotation of the Finance Park event 
which comes to Jackson County twice a year that teaches students in family budgeting through a hand-on 
learning experience. 
 
 

7) GOVERNANCE & MEMBERSHIP UPDATE 
Jim reported that there has been an update in state statutes related to Workforce Boards that defines a 
quorum as a 51% majority of members will affect our strategy of having a large 39-person board that 
includes all the education partners we have. The 51% quorum requirement will make it difficult to have a 
quorum. Conversations will be taking place with John Chamberlin to figure out options. RWP members 
agreed that there is a real sense of value to have all the education partners at the table. Options will be 
explored with the Corporate Directors and a final recommendation/action will be brought to the 
September Workforce Board meeting. 

 
 

8) ACES PRESENTATION REMINDER 
 

Jim emailed the reminder regarding the Southern Oregon Success Key Leaders Summit on June 29th. The 
focus will be on the Adverse Childhood Experiences work that Grants Pass School District presented on at 
RWP previously. National consultant, Laura Porter, will present and engage participants in a training and 
action planning session to delve deeper into the ACE’s and Trauma Informed Care body of work.  
 
As we discussed previously, this work has the potential for profound significance in the development of 
the “soft skills” all employers want to see in the workforce. So, RWP members are encouraged to attend. 
 

9) OTHER BUSINESS 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
June 15, 2016 
Page | 7 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

No other items were brought before the Rogue Workforce Partnership. 
 

10) ADJOURN  
With no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 4:41 pm. 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Tami Allison 
Executive Projects Manager 
/tka 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair        Date 



                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                           
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

ROGUE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP 
September 15, 2016 

Pacific Retirement Services – Third Floor, Washington Room 
1 W. Main St., Medford, OR 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    
Jessica Gomez, Tamara Nordin, Chad Scott, Matt Balkwill, Gregg Edwards, Cathy Kemper-Pelle, Shawn Hogan 
 

*= via phone/videoconference   
QUORUM PRESENT: No    
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Oregon Community Colleges & Workforce Development – John Asher*, Jennifer Denning* 
Business Oregon – Larry Holzgang 
College Dreams – Jen Perry, Tom Drummond 
Commission for the Blind -  Jane Hagle* 
Department of Human Services – Billie Arnold, Rosemary Jernigan 
Grants Pass High School -  John Young 
Jackson Co. Mental Health Supportive Employment – Marie Poppa 
Jackson Co. Mental Health Transitional Age Youth Program – Tawnya Soltis 
Junior Achievement -  Deanna Wilson 
Southern Oregon Goodwill Industries -  Greg Lemhouse 
WorkSource Rogue Valley Employment Dept. -  Ainoura Oussenbec, Josh Morrell, Ross Jesswein, Andrea  
          Burcham 
WorkSource Rogue Valley ResCare – Tabitha Carlson, Linda Lochard, Cynthia Anderson 
Rogue Workforce Partnership:  Aurora King, Dana Shumate, Julie Gillis, Sherri Emitte*, Rebecca Williams, David  
       Fricke,  Jim Fong 
    
1) CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS  

The RWP meeting was called to order by Chair Jessica Gomez at 2:05 pm. Jessica welcomed everyone, 
introductions were made, and it was indicated that a quorum was not present today. 
 
 

2) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Due to the lack of a quorum, the consent agenda, approval of June 15, 2016 RWP meeting minutes, will be 
deferred until the next meeting. 
     

3) GOVERNANCE: 
 
Due to the lack of a quorum, this topic will be reviewed and discussed but not acted upon until the next 
Rogue Workforce Partnership Workforce Board meeting where a quorum is present.  



RWP Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2016 
Page 2 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

 
Jim discussed the background that was given at the last Rogue Workforce Partnership Corporate Director’s 
meeting where they agreed to streamline the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws into one document.  Jim 
and Jessica both noted that the intent is to make certain to have a minimum of one quorum meeting per 
year. Jessica further described the support for this change in that the coordination and size of the board  
allows for inclusion of education, business, and industry partners which makes it challenging to have a 
quorum for such a large board. Jessica indicated that we will have to test the new structure and make 
adjustments as needed moving forward.  
        

4) MISSION, VISIOM & PROMISE STATEMENTS: 
 

Jessica indicated that input was received during the last quarterly RWP Workforce Board meeting as well 
as between now and then and has been incorporated into the document in today’s packet.  The group 
found balance between the suggested edits for the Mission and Vision documents; with helpful ideas 
about how to tease out and differentiate between the Mission and Vision statements.  A suggestion was 
also made to remove all ampersands (&) and insert the actual word “and” into the document. It was noted 
that the Promise Statement could be a potential statewide best practice and standard for all regions. After 
some conversation, comments, and questions, the board agreed to the document as written.  

 
 

5) COORDINATION UPDATES 
 

Industry, Education & Workforce Partnerships-  Multiple efforts are underway to merge/coordinate this 
work in a unified messaging campaign. Work will continue at the next meeting of the Industry, Education & 
Workforce Partnerships to align the work and have a united message to discuss while keeping in mind the 
workforce, industry and education needs.  

• Kathy Trautman, SOREDI – co-convening and leading the group to support having the EDGE 
campaign available to committee members to consider aspects of their message. 

• Shawn Hogan – to brand and build upon the community support 
• Cross-sector group to work with high schools to connect students in a coordinated effort. 
• SOREDI using the EDGE campaign posters to expand and highlight different businesses and 

industries and coordinate with RCC and high schools to identify occupations and career pathway 
linkages in high schools, college and community environments.  

• RCC working to link with SOREDI messages to have a unified communication strategy 
• Cohesive outreach and messaging campaign about the lifestyle and thinking “The Rogue Way” 
• Next meeting scheduled for September 22, 2016 at Medford Fabrication 
• Second phase Oregon Technology Council grant application supporting RCC’s Mary and Ralph 

Henderson mentor program (ready to retire employees from secondary wood products to 
participate and be a mentor to the next generation of learners/incumbent workers). This grant was 
not funded; however, a third round of funding has opened and RCC has been granted 
approximately $50-55,000 to pilot a program over the next year. 

• Continuing work with ResCare/One Stop centers and high schools to identify college/career 
pathways to prepare for demand in millwrights and electricians. 

• Provide pre-apprenticeship to drive potential workforce into the pipeline to support the upcoming 
workforce demand 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2016 
Page 3 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

• An opportunity to have a unified message from a tested and branded campaign available from the 
National Association of Manufacturers, called the “Dream It, Do It” “DIDI” Campaign. This 
messaging has been used in 40 other states to improve the image of the manufacturing industry. 
Norm added that a manufacturing specific campaign needs to align and unify with the broader 
Rogue campaign. Mike Donnelly is taking the opportunity to the State group in October for their 
input.  

• RCC has seen mentorship programs within the community college environment as well as 
scholarships increase retention from 40-80% due to the inclusion of an industry-specific mentor to 
assist in overcoming challenges and support them in stressful school/home/career situations. 
 

       Jessica noted the benefit of understanding that each of these communities have different messages  
       around different topics, and pressed the importance of a unified message to align and strengthen the  
       impact we can have in our community and a broader audience to attract companies to the Rogue Valley.  
 
       The plan is to take the proposed unified message back to the other sectors for input and feedback to  
       drive the effort and empower the work. 
 
       October 10, 2016 Community Leaders Event – The event sponsored and led by Joe Rossi, BBSI and SHRM  

as well as Peter Buckley of Southern Oregon Success (cradle to career) is available to us through an 
OregonAsk grant from the National League of Cities to engage political official’s awareness of STEM related 
projects and efforts across the state. We are also targeting Chambers of Commerce and Media leaders to 
attend. The  

       event will be held on October 10, 2016 12:00-pm-1:30 pm at the Rogue Valley Country Club (watch for an 
       invite to be sent by Scott Beveridge, Superintendent SOESD).   
 

A planning and prep meeting for the event will be held on September 19, 2016 from 3:30 – 5pm to develop 
the unified message, agenda and flow of the day as well as speaker’s list, topics, etc.  

 
      OregonAsk is convening groups in each of the different regions with College and Career for All network 
      partners as well as doing an awareness campaign in Klamath Falls with the Promise Grant to increase  
      graduation rates.  
 
      Participants in this event are asked to bring forth issues in their company / industry and provide input on  
      the challenges or feedback on solutions. Some issues mentioned: 

• Industry licensing in health care 
• Age minimums in health care 
• Improve the level of certification for nursing instructors 
• Policy issue with rural healthcare and coordinated care access 
• Provide higher quality of dental hygienist that can meet the demand and need in rural areas. 
• Inherent problems with K-12 initial skills trainers 

 
        The following is a list of topics that will be presented: 

• CTE-R 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2016 
Page 4 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

• Tech Collective 
• Rogue Advanced Manufacturing Partnership (RAMP) 
• CRLE/Mentoring Programs 
• Career Pathways/Dual Credit 
• Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) self-healing communities 

   
       Jim continued by saying that we will further partner with SHRM to connect workforce and industries to  
       their May 2017 Career Fair.  
 
       Video Updates- Aurora reported that the Tech Video, which will highlight companies that have technology 
       occupations and links technology across the community, are currently being produced and will feature  
       companies such as Rentech in Grants Pass, Lynx Technologies in Merlin, Zeal in Medford, and Plexis in  
       Ashland. Stories of these careers will be told through the eyes of the employees. 
 
       A second video highlighting the manufacturing industry is also being produced with a unique message that 
       manufacturing is no longer “your grandfather’s career”, and the environment has changed significantly.  
 
       A third video for careers in healthcare is in the planning stages. 
 
       Aurora indicated that all of these films are funded by a grant for long-term unemployed workers to  
       develop and improve opportunities for skills training, education, and on-the-job training.  
 
       Jessica suggested that a condensed version be placed in a PSA for local television.         
       
        

6) WORKFORCE SYSTEM DASHBOARD 
 

Aurora presented a table with outline descriptors of metrics, as brainstormed by the REWP team, as a 
potential dashboard in response to a data request from Chair, Jessica Gomez. Aurora added that the RWP 
appreciates the request and the ResCare contract allows us to leverage capacity from IMatch as well as 
ITRAC job seeker data systems both statewide and locally to create a comprehensive picture to meet the 
goals of our strategic plan, to use this information to inform our services, and continue the cycles of 
learning to inform consistent improvement.  
 
Goal #1 identifies two overarching goals; business services and training investments. Jessica stated that 
there should be wage match data in PRISM about who comes out of high school with a credential, obtains 
a job, and the associated wage. “The priority should be to get the students to register and track their 
added training and certifications so these measures can be tracked.  Aurora reported that we have shifted 
from tracking training investments to how we invest in training scholarships up to $2500 with local training 
providers. “We also track OJT reimbursements ranging from $3,000 to $5,098 focusing on the completions 
of trainings within one year rather than just open money”, stated Aurora.  
 
Goal #2 has three areas for tracking Foundational Skills Workshops which includes; Resume Writing, Cover 
Letters, Workplace Culture, Soft Skills & Communication, and Emotional Intelligence. NCRC preparation is 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2016 
Page 5 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

then offered in the computer lab or from home and testing takes place in the three areas of Math, 
Reading, and Locating Information.  
 
We want to be able to identify the comparison of the five stages of the pipeline: 

1. Registration completed in IMatch with corresponding skills profile to match the job; 
2. Individuals who complete the whole profile, which we term, the welcome process; 
3. Individuals who complete the week long, five morning, Foundational Skills Workshop; 
4. Individuals who attend resume and cover letter writing; and 
5. Individuals who attend NCRC and OPAC trainings. 

 
Job listings metrics can be measured by two components; 1) basic – self referral IMatch skills database to 
obtain a job, and 2) Enhanced job listing where a company posts and works with WSRV to post their full 
description and seeks the employee 
 
Goal #3 includes metrics for: 

1. Identification of talent in the system and certifications obtained and responded to posted position 
with aligned business needs of indicated certification. 

2. Referral to hire ratio – did this referral result in a hire? 
3. Business satisfaction – use it to better inform our services – supply side alignment with demand. 
4. Training investments served people who have a job to move up career ladder/path and seek 

additional training for needs of improving career and pay 
5. Ideally identify retention with a 90-day mark of still being employed 
6. NCRC test takers overall, and further those who pass at each level 
7. OPAC test takers and those who pass with 70% or above, but that placed workers are 95% or above 

for their skills in MS Word and Excel. 
 

Goal #4 informs our efforts on cultivating talent with an explanation of the programs 
1. Youth Forestry Crews 
2. CC4A programs that are being created 
3. Industry Tours – educators, students, externships for teachers, job shadows 
4. Career Fairs – such as Careers in Gear and GP High School Career Fair 
5. Outputs and activities to credentials in a job 

 
After reviewing the different goal areas, the board made comments: 

• Is it a long process to see results? 
• Are there other measurements/milestones/dates for how these systems are evolving? 
• What phase to see any trajectory in implementation? 
• Need more data including what type of training did job require? 
• Were they not hired because of background or drug test or references? 
• Is there a planned frequency for reporting? Feels weekly updates are more ideal so information is 

more actionable.  
• Data accountability system that compares nationally with other community colleges how a student 

progressed through the education pipeline; where they fell out, why they fell out, and in what part 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2016 
Page 6 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

of the pipeline they fell out. The concept was designed to reach out to the narrow finishers (those 
missing just a few credits). 

• Most excited about the yellow highlighted areas of the dashboard 
 

Chair, Jessica Gomez, asked Aurora and RWP team to collect the data so this can be reviewed at the next 
meeting. “With more information, we can narrow down the information needed for a dashboard 
appropriate for the Board,” stated Jessica.  
 
The present board members agreed, and showed their excitement about having data that can be 
annualized to show trends.  
 
 

7) YOUTH 
 
WIOA Youth Services 
In-School Youth – College Dreams – Jen Perry, Tom Drummond, and a student, Karla Ortiz shared 
information about the In-School Youth Program at College Dreams (report included in today’s meeting 
packet). When asked, “What are the reasons kids are not enrolled”, Tom indicated that it is due to a 
capacity issue as College Dreams has a 98% participation rate. Jen indicated that Tom personally screens 
all of the students in the contracted schools in both Josephine and Jackson counties for eligibility into the 
program. Lists are then provided to College Dreams staff to invite students into the program. Jen stated 
that the WSRV are also referring potential students to College Dreams.  
 
College Dreams also administers NCRC in schools and over the past three years has tested over 2000 youth 
in Jackson and Josephine Counties.  
 
Out of School Youth – ResCare- Cynthia Ragsdale presented information about the Out of School Youth 
Program at ResCare (report included in today’s meeting packet). A participant named Brandon shared his 
story with the board; as well as Sara Beck sharing other success stories from the program, Deanna Wilson 
from Junior Achievement, and John Young from Grants Pass high school sharing success stories as well.  

 
 

8) WORKSOURCE ROGUE VALLEY & WIOA ADULT SERVICES 
 
This section of the agenda was deferred to a later date due to time constraints.  
       

9) OTHER BUSINESS 

Jim Fong quickly shared that the rollout for the Oregon Connections Pilot Mentorship program is coming 
soon.   

   

   
10) OTHER ITEMS 

No other items were brought before the Rogue Workforce Partnership. 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
September 15, 2016 
Page 7 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

 
11) ADJOURN 

 
With no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 5:00 pm. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Tami Allison 
Executive Projects Manager 
/tka 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair        Date 



 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             B y l a w s  
  
 
              O f  T h e  
 
  
R o g u e  W o r k f o r c e  P a r t n e r s h i p    
 
                                       December 15, 2016 

 
                                         
 

 



 
 
<page intentionally left blank for notes and comment



 1  

ARTICLE I:  Definitions 
 
The following terms are used in these bylaws: 
 
“Corporate Directors” means the governing board of the Rogue Workforce Partnership, a tax-
exempt, nonprofit Oregon corporation (the “Corporation”). 
 
 “Bylaws” means this set of bylaws. 
 
  “Chair” means the Workforce Board’s and the Corporation’s chairperson which shall be        
the same individual. 
 
“Chief Elected Official” or “CEO” means the local elected official designated by the Rogue 
Valley Workforce Consortium (the “Consortium”) in accordance with the Intergovernmental 
Agreement adopted by Jackson and Josephine Counties. 

 
“Consortium” means the Rogue Valley Workforce Consortium (“RVWC”). 
 
“Corporation” means the Rogue Workforce Partnership, a tax-exempt Oregon nonprofit 
corporation.  

 
“Director” means an individual serving as a Corporate Director. 

 
“Executive Director” means the Workforce Board’s, the Corporation’s and the Consortium’s 
Executive Director. The Corporation shall employ the Executive Director. 

 
“Intergovernmental Agreement” means the agreement between Jackson and Josephine 
Counties establishing the RVWC. 

 
“Members” means individuals appointed to the Workforce Board. 

  
“ Partnership Agreement” means the agreement between the Workforce Board, the 
Corporation and the Consortium that establishes the responsibilities of these three entities.   

  
          “WIOA” means the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.  
 
           “Workforce Board” means the Workforce Board for the Rogue Valley workforce area. 

 
 
 
 

  
ARTICLE II:  Purpose 
 
 The Workforce Board’s purpose is to develop, oversee and implement the Rogue Valley 

workforce area’s strategic plan and to perform the duties listed in the Partnership 
Agreement and in grant agreements.   

 
            The Rogue Workforce Partnership (the “Corporation”) is a tax-exempt, nonprofit, public 

benefit Oregon corporation that is the fiscal agent, administrative entity and local grant 



 2  

subrecipient for the Rogue Valley workforce area. The Corporation shall make financial 
and operational decisions necessary to implement the Workforce Board’s strategic plan 
and additional decisions required by WIOA, by the State of Oregon, by the Consortium 
and by other grants and agreements. The Corporation’s duties and functions shall be limited 
to those permitted by Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and by Oregon 
statutes applicable to nonprofit public benefit corporations. 

 
            These bylaws cover both the Workforce Board and the Corporation. 
 
 
ARTICLE III:  Members and Meetings 
 

A. Number of Members and Directors 
 

The size of the Workforce Board shall be variable with the number of Members 
determined by the Consortium. The composition of the Workforce Board must comply 
with WIOA, as amended from time to time, and by State of Oregon policy issuances. 
 
The Corporation shall have of seven to nine Corporate Directors. The Workforce Board 
Chair and Vice-Chair shall be Directors and shall serve in the same capacity as the 
Corporation’s Chair and Vice-Chair. The two Consortium board members … one 
County Commissioner from Jackson and one from Josephine County … shall also serve 
as Corporate Directors. Between three and five additional Directors shall be private 
sector Workforce Board Members selected by the Corporate Directors. 

 
B. Appointment of Workforce Board Members 

 
The Consortium shall make Workforce Board appointments in accordance with the 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 

 
C. Terms of Office 

 
The terms of Workforce Board Members are three years from the date of appointment, 
except that initial appointments shall be staggered.  

 
D. Resignation and Removal 

 
Any Workforce Board Member may be removed or suspended with or without cause 
by the Consortium. A Workforce Board Member may resign at any time by delivering 
written notice to the Chief Elected Official, the Chair or to the Executive Director.  
Unless the notice of resignation specifies a later effective date, the resignation will be 
effective when received. 
 
Corporate Directors must be active Members of the Workforce or Consortium Board. 
If a Director ceases to serve on either the Workforce Board or the Consortium Board, 
they shall no longer serve as a Corporate Director. Directors may resign utilizing the 
same procedure as stated above for Workforce Board Members. The additional private 
sector Directors may be removed by a vote of the Corporate Directors. 

 
E. Meetings 



 3  

 
1. Regular Meetings 

 
The Workforce Board and the Corporation shall determine the time and place of 
their regular meetings in advance and also authorize the Chair and Vice-Chair to 
call meetings. 

 
2. Annual Meeting 

 
Unless a different date is set by resolution of the Workforce Board, the Workforce 
Board’s annual meeting shall be the first regular meeting at which a quorum is 
reached on or after July 1st of each year. During the annual meeting, Workforce 
Board officers shall be elected. The Corporation’s annual meeting shall be its first 
meeting at which a quorum is reached after the Workforce Board chooses its 
officers. 

 
3. Special Meetings 

 
Special meetings of the Workforce Board or the Corporation may be held as called 
by the Chair or by the Vice-Chair, or by a majority of Workforce Board Members 
or Corporate Directors. 

 
4. Minutes 

 
Minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed and approved at subsequent meetings 
and copies of all approved minutes shall be maintained at the Corporation’s 
principal office. 

 
5. Sunshine Provision 

 
All Workforce Board and Corporation meetings shall be conducted in accordance 
with public meeting laws, these bylaws and the Workforce Board’s and 
Corporation’s Code of Conduct. 

 
6. Participation 

 
Participation at Workforce Board and Corporation meetings shall be limited to their 
respective Members and Directors, with the following exceptions: 
 

a. Regularly scheduled agenda items that call for reports or participation by 
non-Members or non-Directors; 
 

b. County elected officials who sit on the Consortium Board; 
 
c. At the discretion of the Chair, comment or other participation by non-

Members or non-Directors which is material to the matter under 
consideration;  

 
d. Individuals who are not Workforce Board members and who serve on Board 

committees; and, 



 4  

 
e. Comments from the general public as specified in meeting agendas or as 

permitted by the Chair. 
 

 
 

7. Rules 
 

All meetings shall be held in compliance with Oregon law, grant terms, these 
bylaws and Roberts’ Rules of Order, provided that the use of Roberts’ Rules of 
Order shall be solely for the convenience of the Workforce Board, the Corporation 
and their committees.  Failure to comply with Roberts’ Rules of Order shall not 
affect the validity of any action taken which is otherwise in compliance with these 
bylaws.  In the event of a conflict, the order of precedence shall be Oregon law, 
grant terms, these bylaws, and Roberts’ Rules of Order. 

 
F. Meeting Notices and Agendas 

 
1. Meeting Notices 
 

Meeting notices shall be given at least three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting 
unless special conditions make advance notice impracticable, in which case notice 
and a description of the purpose of the meeting shall be given not less than 24 hours 
prior to the meeting.  Notwithstanding the forgoing, a special meeting can be 
conducted at any time and without notice if all Members or Directors are present in 
person or by electronic means and do not object to the meeting. Notices may be 
given electronically. 
 

2. Agendas 
 

Meeting notices shall contain an agenda of the topics scheduled for consideration.  
The Workforce Board and the Corporation may consider and act upon matters at a 
regular meeting (including the annual meeting) which are not included in the notice 
agenda, but may not act upon any matter during a special meeting unless that matter 
was described in the special meeting notice or all of the Members or Directors are 
present in person or electronically and do not object to the matter being considered. 

 
G. Quorum 

 
A majority of Workforce Board Members shall constitute a quorum. No suspended 
Member shall be included in establishing whether a quorum has been reached.  A 
Member is deemed to be present at a meeting for the purpose of determining a quorum 
even if the Member abstains from voting on one or more items on the agenda.  
 
A majority of the Corporation Directors shall constitute a quorum. The same quorum 
provisions cited above shall apply to suspended and abstaining Corporate Directors. 

 
 

H. Manner of Acting 
 



 5  

Each Workforce Board Member shall have one vote at a Workforce Board meeting.  
Similarly, Corporate Directors shall have one vote at Corporation meetings. The act of 
a majority of the Members or Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is 
present shall be the act of the Workforce Board and the Corporation respectively. To 
the extent permitted by Oregon law, Members and Directors may attend meetings by 
telephone or through other electronic means.  

 
 
ARTICLE IV:  Workforce Board and Corporation Officers 
 

A. Required Officers and Nominations 
 

The officers of the Workforce Board shall include a Chair, who shall be a private sector 
business representative, and a Vice-Chair who shall also be a private sector business 
representative.  The Workforce Board may elect other officers as deemed necessary.  
A single Member may perform the duties of more than one office, with the exception 
of the duties of Chair and the Vice-Chair, which must be performed by separate 
Members. The Corporation’s Chair and Vice-Chair shall be the same individuals who 
are the Workforce Board’s Chair and Vice-Chair. The Corporation may also elect other 
officers.         

 
B. Duties of the Chair  

 
The Chair shall preside at meetings, shall serve as the Workforce Board’s and the 
Corporation’s chief spokesperson and signatory, shall appoint committee chairs and 
committee members subject to these bylaws, and shall perform other duties assigned 
by the Workforce Board and the Corporation. 

 
C. Duties of the Vice-Chair 

 
The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the Chair’s absence and shall 
perform other duties designated by the Workforce Board and the Corporation. 

 
 

D. Election and Term 
 

 The Workforce Board’s officers shall be elected at the annual meeting and shall serve 
until the conclusion of the officers’ election at the subsequent annual meeting. The 
Corporation may also elect officers other than the Chair and Vice-Chair at its annual 
meeting. If an officer resigns prior to the annual election, an interim officer may be 
elected at a regular meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ARTICLE V:  Committees  
 

A. Creation of Committees 



 6  

 
The Workforce Board, the Corporation and their Chair shall each have the power to 
create both standing and ad-hoc committees and task groups. The Chair shall appoint 
committee members and committee chairs subject to any Workforce Board and 
Corporation direction. 

 
B. The Executive Committee and the Corporation 
 

The Corporate Directors shall be the Workforce Board’s Executive Committee. The 
Corporation may act in the name of both the Workforce Board and the Corporation 
unless expressly barred from doing so by the Workforce Board or the Consortium. The 
Corporate Directors shall also act as the Workforce Board’s nominating committee and 
shall solicit and recommend a slate of officer candidates.  

 
 
 

ARTICLE VI: Executive Director 
 
The Corporation shall employ the Rogue Valley workforce area’s Executive Director who 
shall staff the Workforce Board, the Corporation and the Consortium The Executive 
Director may assign other staff to perform Workforce Board, Corporation and Consortium 
functions within the confines of budget constraints and direction from the Workforce 
Board, the Corporation and the Consortium.  The Executive Director shall work at the 
direction of the Chair and shall be annually evaluated by the Corporate Directors. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII:  Amendment 
 
A. Amendment Process 

 
These bylaws may be amended or repealed by an affirmative vote of a majority of the 
Workforce Board Members at a regular or special meeting.  These bylaws may also be 
amended or repealed by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Corporate Directors at 
a regular or special meeting. A notice, which shall specify the changes to be made, shall 
be delivered to all Members and Directors no less than seven (7) days prior to the 
meeting at which bylaw amendment or repeal is to be acted upon.  A vote in favor of 
or opposed to bylaws amendment may be delivered in writing or through electronic 
means. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII:  Bylaws Enactment 
 

These Workforce Board and Corporation bylaws take effect when adopted by both the 
Workforce Board and the Corporation.  

 
 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE WORKFORCE BOARD AND THE CORPORATION 



 7  

 
 

 
Chair:_________________________________ 

 
 

Date: 
_________________________________ 

 Jessica Gomez 
 
 
 
Vice Chair:____________________________  Date: _________________________________ 
         Gregg Edwards 



































 

The Rogue Valley’s Best Practices in Creating an Integrated Public Workforce System 
 
Report & Response to Governor Kate Brown’s Question: 
“How can we replicate the kind of partnerships we have in the Rogue Valley throughout the state?” 
 
 Capitalize on Crisis and Opportunity 

• Our partnerships intensely deepened when budget cuts stripped away our services 
• We chose to build a new framework of collaborative leadership. We had to work together differently 

- more reliant on each other, building trust and new relationships 
 

 Local Leadership & Cultural Change 
• Shift Perspective  

 “think & behave like a system” 
 From a supply-side driven system to a demand-driven system 

• Local Leadership Team 
 Constant feedback & loop – just beginning  │  Self-reflection /  Continuous Learning 

• Trust & Transparency 
• Communication & Messaging – “We’re all one team” 
• Changing from a “No” culture to a “Yes” culture 

 
 Human-Centered Design     

• Creating Value-Added Customer Experiences, Skills Gain, Job Placement Results & Career Path Entry 
 

 Strategic Staffing, Hiring & Cross-Training 
• Outside Hiring 
• Cross-Loading 
• Commitment to staff Cross-Training  

 
 Administrative Alignment 

• Joint RFP – RWP & DHS   
 Next step – single contract? 

• DHS Contracts   
• VRD 
 

 Measuring  
• 6 areas – tactical to strategic flow    tight/loose 
• Need vs. want – agencies pile in on idealized wants 
• After action reports 

 What was supposed to happen 
 What happened 
 What to: do more of / stop doing / change or do differently 
 Why does it break down?  Why doesn’t it happen? 

 
 Critical Role of RWP as System Convener, Consolidator & Facilitator 

• Need to improve funding alignment / structure 
 
Framework 
 
Past   │  Present   │  Future  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Systems     │     Causal Loops │     Soil Building      │      Relationships & Trust    │    Longevity & position 
 
v.20161130



 

STATE 

FEDERAL 

FRONT LINE WORK 

 
 
 

 
      

 

LEGISLATION        │        FUNDING      │       POLICY         │   ACCOUNTABILITY /  
      REPORTING 

    K-12   
     SCHOOL S 

UNIVERSITIES COMMUNITY  
COLLEGE 

HECC / CCWD 

POLICY-MAKING 

PROGRAM 
ADMINISTRATION 

TITLE I-B 
Skills 

Training 
 

TITLE II 
Adult 

Basic Skills 
 

Funding for 
Community 

Colleges 
 

Funding for 
Universities 

 

OED 
 

TITLE III 
& 

SEDAF 
Labor 

h
 
 

Ve
te

ra
ns

 

 

TAA 
Trade 

Adjustment 
Act 

 

Migrant & 
Seasonal 
Workers 

 

DHS 
 

SELF-
SUFFICIENCY 
TANF, SNAP, 

ERDC 
 

TITLE IV 
VOC. 

REHAB. 
 

CHILD 
WELFARE 

 

WORKSOURCE 
OREGON 

DHS VRD 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  

CUSTOMERS / 
OREGONIANS                 

Our Partnership Work: 
 Capitalize on Crisis and Opportunity 
 Local Leadership & Cultural Change –       

“think & behave like a system” 
 Human-Centered Design 
 Strategic Staffing, Hiring & Cross-Training 
 Administrative Alignment 
 Measure what’s working & what’s not 
 

 

More service integration 
alignment work is 
needed at the state-
level with agencies – 
guided by Local 
Workforce Boards/ the 
field, & with OWIB 
oversight 

We’re “weaving” together an integrated education & workforce system at the local level! 

Policy-Makers need to 
hear directly from front 
line program managers, 
staff & customers to 
inform policy changes 

Partnership Best Practices  
Improving Local, State & Federal Alignment 

                          DEPARTMENT OF 
                EDUCATION  

 

Funding for K-12 Education 
 



A filled In version of this report template will be  handed out at the RWP meeting

# % # % # % # %
Total YTD Job Seekers

Foundational Skills Workshop Completers
NCRC Completers 
Occupational Skills Workshop Completers
Computer Training Completers
Total Unduplicated Workshop Completers

On-the-Job Training Completers 
Work Experience/Internship Completers
Short Term Skills Training Scholarships
Customized / Enhanced Job Listings 
Job Placements

On-the-Job Training Completers 
Work Experience/Internship Completers
Short Term Skills Training Scholarships
Customized / Enhanced Job Listings 
Job Placements

On-the-Job Training Completers 
Work Experience/Internship Completers
Short Term Skills Training Scholarships
Customized / Enhanced Job Listings 
Job Placements

On-the-Job Training Completers 
Work Experience/Internship Completers
Short Term Skills Training Scholarships
Customized / Enhanced Job Listings 
Job Placements

DASHBOARD - WORKSOURCE ROGUE VALLEY (Draft)

Training 
Investments 

Job Placements

Total Training &  
Job Placements

Workshops

QE 12/31/16 QE 3/31/17 QE 6/30/17QE 9/30/16

Job Placements

Other Trainings and 
Job Placements

Training 
Investments 

Training 
Investments 

Training 
Investments 

Sector Strategy 
Industries

Job Placements

Job Placements

In-Demand 
Occupations





v20161215

Unduplicate
d YTD Total





Job listings 1042
Percentage of closed listings that result in a hire 37%
Percentage of On-the-Job Training Completers 58%
Percentage of Occupational Skills Training Completers 100%

WSRV customers who got a job:

  Percentage of customers who completed registration QE 6/30 63%
  Percentage of customers who completed Welcome Process QE 
6/30 80%
Number of new business engagements 60
Number of job listings entered Basic/Self-Referral 993
Number of job listings entered Enhanced/Customized 45
Percentage of On-the-Job Training Completers 74%
Percentage of Occupational Skills Training Completers 85%

Skill Building Activities Workshop Occurrences 1298
Number of staff referrals in response to job listings 236
Referral to hire ratio 19%
Percentage of closed listings that result in a hire 37%
Business Satisfaction 60%
Quality of hire: retention TBD
Fill time TBD

Accelerate Career Momentum: Create opportunity for individuals 
who are currently underemployed  to move up in their career path:
  Percentage of On-the-Job Training Completers 100%
  Percentage of Occupational Skills Training Completers 82%
  On-the-Job Training completers employed by placement 
employer 90 days   after training 100%

NCRC 213    
Office Proficiency Assessment Certification 48
 

Skill Building/Career Exploration 
Activities Career X 8, 6, 75%

Percentage of work experience training completers 74%

Youth Crews 5

Industry Tours 1
Internships TBD

Career Days (e.g., Careers in Gear, GP Career Fairs, RCC STEM 
Connections, etc.)

TBD

DASHBOARD

Assessments/Certifications

Training Investments

Business Services
Goal 3: Invest in Southern 

Oregonians to build in-
demand skills, match 

training and  job seekers to 
opportunities, and 
accelerate career 

momentum

Goal 4. Create and develop 
talent by providing young 
people with information 

and experiences that 
engage their interests, spur 

further career 
development, and connect 

to Oregon employers
College and Careers for all

Work-Based Learning

QE 
6/30/17

Business Services

Goal 2: Continue building a 
customer-centric workforce 

system that is easy to 
access, highly effective, 

and simple to understand

Training Investments (all)

QE 
9/30/16

QE 
12/31/16

QE 
3/31/17

Business Services

Training Investments (Sector Strategies 
Industries/In-Demand Sectors)

Goal 1: Continue building 
our Sector Strategies 

partnerships

ROI of job-getting activities



July August September October November December January February March April May June Year

District TANF Caseload Size 5024 5135 5230 5178 5178 5169 5079 4844 4860 4842 4849 4893 5,023
Mandatory #'s 4763 4800 4872 4847 4832 4804 4741 4616 4617 4594 4615 4647 4,729
Increase in Mandatory's 37 72 -25 -15 -28 -63 -125 1 -23 21 32 -116

Target % of Contract 8.33% 16.66% 25.00% 33.33% 41.66% 50.00% 58.33% 66.66% 75.00% 83.33% 91.65% 100.00%

JOBS Supp.Serv $Allocated 118,780$   118,780$     118,780$    118,780$  118,780$   118,780$     118,780$   118,780$  118,780$  118,780$   118,780$        118,780$   1,425,354$   
Support Services Spent $150,594 $149,597 $163,818 $144,458 $112,217 $122,723 $108,899 $117,099 $129,999 $131,035 $131,257 $118,738 $1,580,433 111%
Supported Work Goal:  150 Mo. (Contract Yr: 
1800) 149 173 196 178 210 163 156 174 158 164 153 185 2059 114.39% 142.99%
# of New SW Participants (480) 83 94 124 110 95 72 80 79 72 73 51 58 991

SOGI Job Search 140 Mo.  (Cont. Yr: 1680) 93 75 42 21 35 28 59 18 16 6 88 22 503 30% 37.43%
# of New Job Search Participants 69 56 49 49 65 37 31 13 30 2 11 6 418
Work Experience Goal: 160 Mo. (Contract Yr: 
1920) 98 80 105 119 100 99 122 118 126 122 92 97 1278 66.56% 83.20%
# of New WE Participants 35 39 53 47 40 36 57 52 52 48 38 44 541
WSO Clerical Interns (included in WE's mo. 
#) 0 10 7 4 3 6 4 9 6 4 4 4 61
# of New Clerical Participants 0 10 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 3 4 0 29

# Placed in Clerical Field 0 0 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 5
WSO Health Care Interns (included in WE's 
mo. #) 11 5 10 13 3 6 10 0 18 12 4 12 104
# of New Health Care Participants 0 2 10 3 0 6 10 0 18 12 4 7 72
# Placed in HC Field 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 2 0 5
Teen Coordinator Services 50 Per Month 
(Contract Yr. 600) 36 40 45 46 43 43 35 45 55 51 51 50 540 90.00% 112.50%

# of New Teen Participants 3 7 7 7 1 4 3 13 10 4 3 3 65
# of TANF Mandatory's Teens 32 30 35 31 22 24 28 32 29 22 25 23 333
Teens that Met Participation 19 18 21 19 15 14 14 17 19 19 19 14 208
Teens Completing Diploma/GED 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 1 1 0 7
WSO Job Search (250 mo) ( Yr:  3000) 169 124 146 136 119 120 171 157 126 152 124 135 1679 120.50% 150.63%
# of New Job Search Participants 83 48 75 62 63 52 88 69 52 75 63 72 802
WSO Life Skills Activity 113 115 133 116 85 108 148 179 219 241 244 235 1936

# of New Life Skills /TJC (included in JO #'s) 71 64 68 60 46 64 82 96 109 113 115 97 985
JOBS Plus  38 a Mo. (Con. Yr. 456) 18 12 16 14 12 12 13 16 29 30 30 28 230 50.44% 63.01%
# of New JOBS Plus Participants 4 3 4 0 3 2 3 7 15 4 7 7 59
NCRC/TANF - Completers (25) 15 11 13 11 13 14 70 17 15 24 16 13 232
# Completed w/Silver & Above 13 6 11 8 11 10 53 15 13 13 13 11 177
Voc. Training (VT) # in Step 57 52 38 41 51 37 41 48 55 64 45 34 47
# of New VT's 13 4 6 6 9 0 13 8 19 12 6 2 98
# Completed VT (or VT ended) 3 1 3 1 3 11
# Placed in Field 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1
FS&C # of Families Served (219) 56 53 50 47 54 47 48 50 53 56 53 63 630 287.67% 360.00%
# of New Referrals 16 13 14 23 26 24 20 17 26 31 26 25 261
FS&C # of Contact Hours Monthly (Con. Yr. 
2851) 302 190 216 283 156 273 290 277 365 308 299 332 3291 115.43% 144.28%

REACH Ed Grant # Served (Con. Yr 75) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 34 40 48 55 201 268.00% 335.00%
# of New Educational Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 10 6 8 22 70
# of Completers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 7 11
# Placed in Field 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 4
SOHOPE - HC # Served (Con. Yr. 29) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 9 12 19 43 148.28% 244.32%
# of New SOHOPE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 5 7 3 18
# of Completers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
# Placed in Field 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing Spec.  # in Housing(25) (Yr. 300) 2 5 5 5 7 7 11 11 15 15 15 13 111 37.00% 46.25%
# of New Placed in Housing 0 3 0 0 2 1 4 0 5 1 1 0 17

District Activity & Participation by Month

Current % of 
Yr Goal 

(Where we're 
at)

Current % at 
80% of Goal

July Report w/June 2016 Data               2015-2016 District 8 JOBS Dashboard



July August September October November December January February March April May June Year
Mo. Placement 
Numbers Contracted & 
Non-Contracted (Target 
= 1296) 137 148 133 164 161 89 115 92 107 111 120 146 1523 118%
Number of Placements 
Resulting in Closure 
(1116) 123 123 120 143 128 72 102 82 86 83 88 115 1265 113%
Number of Placements 
not Validated (not 
included in number 
above) 21 24 0 4 -17 -7 2 23 21 5 47 0 123

WSO Target Monthly 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 612
WSO Placements 
(Con. Yr. 612) 34 38 43 52 29 24 30 40 55 51 70 66 532 87% 108.57%

WSO Resulting in 
Closure Target  (564) 30 21 22 47 51 13 28 11 31 18 41 44 357 63% 79.16%

SOGI Target Monthly 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 33 33 33 33 33 389
SOGI Placements 
(Con. Yr. 389) 17 26 20 13 16 11 2 18 21 16 13 8 181 47% 58.20%

SOGI Resulting in 
Closure (335) 4 10 22 8 14 6 8 7 8 10 12 16 125 37% 46.64%

Placements             July Report w/June  2016 Data                2015-2016 District 8 JOBS Dashboard       

Current % 
of Yr Goal 

(Where 
we're at)

Current % 
at 80% of 

Goal



July August September October November December January February March April May June Year
Breakdown of Participation
Program 2 Participation % 18.20% 18.40% 17.70% 16.50% 16.80% 14.30% 15.20% 16.40% 20.90% 20.20% 22.70% 19.50% 18.07%
Teen Participation % 59.40% 60.00% 60.00% 61.30% 68.20% 58.30% 50.00% 53.10% 65.50% 81.80% 76.00% 60.90% 62.88%
JPI Participation % 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.90% 99.99%
J82 Participation % 99.60% 99.70% 99.70% 99.90% 99.90% 99.80% 99.90% 99.90% 99.70% 99.60% 99.60% 99.00% 99.69%
Employment Payment (M5/P2) % 19.50% 27.00% 23.25%
Total Participation % 75.70% 76.10% 76.00% 77.70% 78.30% 77.30% 78.20% 77.80% 79.10% 78.60% 77.50% 76.20% 77.38%

Gas $54,360.00 $62,366.00 $67,542.00 $58,660.00 $50,869.00 $54,938.00 $49,076.00 $52,522.00 $58,481.00 $43,965.00 $42,972.63 $44,061.30 $639,812.93

Child Care $78,234.00 $71,509.00 $77,136.00 $65,763.00 $48,625.00 $61,138.00 $54,853.00 $56,499.00 $65,006.00 $68,349.00 $76,386.53 $67,136.16 $790,634.69

Auto Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,314.03 $2,114.49 $3,428.52

Professional Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,661.00 $873.00 $2,534.00

Clothing $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,458.65 $1,529.62 $2,988.27

Books, Etc $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $316.50 $91.99 $408.49

Other $18,000.00 $15,722.00 $19,140.00 $20,036.00 $12,723.00 $6,650.00 $5,025.00 $8,121.00 $5,641.00 $8,721.00 $4,633.33 $2,930.95 $127,343.28
Total $150,594.00 $149,597.00 $163,818.00 $144,459.00 $112,217.00 $122,726.00 $108,954.00 $117,142.00 $129,128.00 $121,035.00 $128,742.67 $118,737.51 $1,567,150.18

Flexible Funds Available @ 
Beginning of Mo. $9,003.00 $9,003.00 $8,579.00 $8,579.00 $8,226.20 $7,706.20 $7,364.21 $6,564.21 $6,264.21 $5,434.84 $4,787.02 $3,756.58 Year Total
Payments Made $0.00 $424.00 $0.00 $352.80 $520.00 $341.99 $800.00 $300.00 $829.37 $647.82 $1,030.44 $3,114.06 $8,360.48
Balance of Flexible Funds $9,003.00 $8,579.00 $8,579.00 $8,226.20 $7,706.20 $7,364.21 $6,564.21 $6,264.21 $5,434.84 $4,787.02 $3,756.58 $642.52

S.E.T # Served (Contract yr. 250) 36 30 42 25 26 26 46 36 29 17 13 32 358 143.20% 179.00%

S.E.T # Placed in Employment 14 9 10 11 10 5 8 10 10 22 7 7 123

Gas (71) $732.00 $2,445.25 $4,534.25 $5,848.25 $6,161.25 $3,967.00 $4,014.90 $4,014.70 $5,025.70 $6,589.89 $6,589.89 $2,958.55 $52,881.63
Child Care (70) $8,319.78 $3,259.86 $9,157.31 $9,561.05 $5,965.84 $7,251.62 $8,521.95 $7,423.42 $7,928.40 $5,643.37 $6,135.36 $12,522.67 $91,690.63
Books Etc (88) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $69.00 $69.00
Auto Maintenance (83) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $154.00 $118.58 $118.58 $0.00 $391.16
Professional Fees (84) $0.00 $0.00 $57.75 $0.00 $74.00 $74.00 $193.50 $399.25
Clothing (72) $200.00 $126.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18.96 $344.96
Other (76) $97.83 $1,787.73 $3,886.73 $2,894.83 $2,387.82 $384.59 $0.00 $55.00 $0.00 $115.00 $115.00 $225.00 $11,949.53
Total $9,149.61 $7,492.84 $17,578.29 $18,304.13 $14,514.91 $11,803.21 $12,662.85 $11,550.87 $13,108.10 $12,540.84 $13,032.83 $15,987.68 $157,726.16

Current % 
at 80% of 

Goal

Vocactional Training (VT) Support Service Breakdown

Participation/Support Services/SET Program               July Report w/June 2016 Data                2015-2016 District 8 JOBS Dashboard       

Support Service Breakdown

FS&C Flexible Funds

S.E.T Program

Current % 
of Yr Goal 

(Where 
we're at)



Current % 
of Yr Goal 
(Where 
we're at)

Target % of Contract 8.33% 16.66% 25.00% 33.33% 41.66% 50.00% 58.33% 66.66% 75.00% 83.33% 91.65% 100.00%
July August September Year

OFSET Funds Mo. Allocation 2,550$     2,550$         2,550$          $7,650

OFSET Funds Spent Monthly $0 $8,920 $7,060 $15,980
OFSET # Served Monthly 
(Con. Yr. 1500) 312 263 258 833 55.53%
OFSET # of Placements  
Monthly (Con. Yr. 267) 25 20 31 76 50.67%

October November December January Febrary March April May June July August September Year
OFSET Funds Mo. Allocation 8,905$     8,905$         8,905$          8,905$       8,905$        8,905$       8,905$        8,905$       8,905$       8,905$       8,905$       8,905$                 $106,863

OFSET Funds Spent Monthly $3,960 $4,000 $6,400 $6,120 $4,870 $4,000 $3,060 $3,500 $3,140 $39,050
OFSET # Served Monthly 
(Con. Yr. 1500) 264 176 226 234 221 265 242 235 217 2080 138.67%
OFSET # of Placements  
Monthly (Con. Yr. 258) 34 12 19 8 14 25 24 32 25 193 74.81%

July August September October November December January February March April May June Total
NCRC - Completers (25 
Month) 300 Yr. 22 17 24 24 12 30 32 31 43 32 29 28 324 108.00%
# Completed w/Silver & 
Above 17 16 19 19 9 25 23 23 37 25 23 27 263

OFSET 2015-2106 NCRC

OFSET 2014-2015 Biennium  Jul-Sept

OFSET 2015-2016 Biennium Oct-Sept
Current % 
of Yr Goal 

(Where 
we're at)







SOUTHERN OREGON TECH JOBS  
ON THE RISE 

Rogue Valley IT jobs have increased 300% in 10 years

Home Ownership: 
Silicon Valley vs.  

Rogue Valley

2016 Average Annual Salary, 
Programmer, Silicon Valley 

$932,900

Median  
Home Price 
Silicon Valley

$80,027

$247,000

Median  
Home Price 
Rogue Valley

2016 Average Annual Salary, 
Programmer, Rogue Valley 

$62,346

The Demand
Workforce pipeline needs identified by 
Rogue Valley Technology sector leaders 
in 2016 include: 
• Programmers
• Marketing
• Graphic Design
• Hardware
• User Support
• Business Administration
• Systems Administration/Networking
• Project Managers

Ave. monthly wage, Silicon 
Valley programmer, after 
taxes:$4680, compared to 
ave. rent.

Ave. monthly wage, Rogue 
Valley programmer, after 
taxes:$3686, compared 
to ave. rent.

The Rogue Valley 
offers the  

9th lowest costs 
 for healthcare  

in the US.

$2,992

Average Price,  
1 or 2 bedroom 
rental 
Silicon Valley

$900  
Average Price,  
1 or 2 bedroom 
rental 
Rogue Valley

Rent: 
Silicon Valley 

vs.  
Rogue Valley

$1,689

Net Income  
after taxes  
and rent, 
Silicon Valley

$2,786

Net Income  
after taxes  
and rent, 
Rogue Valley

Expendable  
Income: 

Silicon Valley 
vs.  

Rogue Valley

Living & Working in Southern Oregon  
means you’ll have more $



195  
average days of         sun per year 

+  4 distinct seasons

+ Short Commute Times 

SOUTHERN OREGON LIVING:  
That unique blend of  

professional accomplishment,  
personal interests and  

time for friends & family. 

How could you spend this extra time 
and money living in the Rogue Valley? 

• Craft Breweries
• Wineries and Wine Tours
• Mt. Ashland Ski & Board Resort
• Oregon Coast Getaway Nearby
• Extensive Hiking & Biking Trails within 30 minutes’ drive 
• Mountain Lakes within 60 minutes’ drive
• 19 Fishing Destinations within 30 minutes’ drive
• Britt Festivals: Largest Outdoor Musical Festival in PNW 
• Oregon Shakespeare: Best Shakespeare in the US 
• Art Galleries, Theatres & More!









What did you like best about the event? What about the event, can be improved for next year? 
The tours were fantastic! More time to talk with the business' personnel... 

Being able to speak with different people in their 
professions. 

It was a great tour if you were a software engineer, IT or a working with 
databases. I would gladly come back if it included more embedded and 
hardware companies. 

The reversal of interviews Making sure all businesses are wanting to talk to students. A few companies 
shrugged me off like I was a bother. 

The positivity. Make it more toward spring. That way seniors may actually apply for jobs that 
they could start after graduation. 

Giving us a chance to talk with representatives 
of other companies and learning what's available 
in the Rogue Valley. 

I had the impression that the companies we were visiting would be looking for 
interns to hire, giving us the opportunity to get our foot in the door. I was also 
a little disappointed on how few companies were offering engineering 
positions. In fact there were a few who were only looking for IT support 
positions. My suggestion would be to focus on companies that provide 
internship opportunities for engineering students. 

Plexis Less Zeal 

The chance to be in site with these companies to 
see what it is really like to work for these 
companies 

With so many people there, I found it hard to get to talk to the companies that 
had tables set up. There were so many people around a table it was hard to 
hear and actually get to talk to them 

The information Listings of potential positions before tour to get a better idea to prepare 
questions for those specific job openings 

I liked meeting all the companies; I had no idea 
there were so many in the rogue valley. I had 
never really considered staying here after I 
graduate before now. 

I didn't really love the tours of the companies, they felt lacking. I think the 
ability to walk up to companies' tables and speak to them 1-on-1 was more 
valuable than walking around their halls, but I admit that it was interesting to 
see potential workspaces.  

Meeting the business owners and hearing their 
advice. 

Perhaps a bit more structure so we have more time at each location. I found it 
difficult to get to even half the booths at each station before we had to move 
on. 

Observing a real work environment. Showcase some businesses that use embedded technology or hardware 
technology, the current trip was too software focused. 

Tour to different companies, get to know their 
environment and culture. 

More days, deeply knows what they are doing! 

Well balanced and welcoming. We were rushed at times. 

Being able to visit and talk to potential future 
employers. 

The walking tour part did feel somewhat rushed, more time to visit with 
companies would be nice. 

Networking and learning about the start up 
experience some of the other companies had. 

Cap the event to juniors and seniors only 

Free food asfasdfads 

Being able to talk to people about how they 
gotten into my field. 

We all brought resumés but didn't really find a good point to give them to 
employers. Having a point in the tour just for giving resumés out would be 
nice. 

Learning about the different companies. Different companies every year 

Learning about what type of tech companies are 
right here that I did not know about. 

I think the schedule needs to be a bit more strict.  I feel although Trever from 
zeal has a great and charismatic personality, kind of stole the light from 
others.  I felt like he seemed he was the most important and took time from 
others tours/companies 

I really enjoyed meeting the businesses and 
learning about what they do so close to where i 
go to school.  

I think one of the big things that could be improved for next year is expand 
the time spent at each place for more questions.  

Meeting great people. Nothing 

Being able to tour around and learn more about 
the fields that were possible in my path. 

I hope that the event can happen more than once a year. Also, I believe that 
the businesses the student’s tour should be related more towards what 
they're studying. Often or not, some of the businesses seemed to really need 
IT help than Software Engineers. 

Trever w/Zeal NA 

The companies that were overly nice, as well as 
the man from Zeal that took time to ride on the 
bus with us. 

Maybe stressing that we would not have time to talk to everyone, and see all 
the businesses that we wanted to.  We seemed to run out of time really 
quickly. 

I appreciated all the planning and organization 
that went into the Rogue Tech Tour.  It showed! 

I would enjoy attending a separate tech tour geared to the hardware side of 
technology employment for electronics technicians/engineers. 

Student Comments 



Strategic Approach to Building a Talent Pipeline 

Rogue Advanced Manufacturing Partnership 



Rogue Advanced Manufacturing 

Partnership (RAMP)
• Strategic Priorities

oEnsuring a skilled talent pipeline

oPromoting manufacturing as a viable career choice

oAdvocating policies that support career technical training

• Recent Initiatives/Interests

 Regular meetings of high-profile manufacturing leaders

 Survey of employment and skill needs 

 Identification of priority industry certifications as a validation of skills

 Stronger education –employer partnerships



Value of Industry Certifications

• Over 90% of companies 
that use industry-recognized 
certifications believe they 
make a difference in 
validating the skills of their 
employees;

• Community colleges are the 
most used partner by 
companies looking to 
incorporate certifications, 
but more high schools are 
getting involved nationally. 



Benefits 

•Improved hiring practices

•Minimizes “guesswork” in selection and 

promotion

•Saves money and improves bottom line

•Ensures training includes knowledge and 

skills required for the job

•Develops a certified, professional technical 

workforce



Advanced Manufacturing 

Competency Model

C
a

re
e

r 
P

a
th

s
 –

L
if
e

 L
o

n
g

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

Ready for Work, Ready 

for College (NCRC)

Entry Level Industry 

Certifications 

(MSSC/CPT)

Occupation-Specific 

Certifications 

(AWS/NIMS))

High Quality Middle 

Class Jobs














	20161215 RWP Meeting Agenda Final v2 0
	20161206 RWP Membership  - Action Brief
	20160615 RWP Minutes for approval and signature
	20160915 RWP Minutes for approval and signature
	20160915 Draft Rogue Valley Bylaws
	Bylaws
	Of The
	Rogue Workforce Partnership
	<page intentionally left blank for notes and comment


	Policies for approval
	12 8 16 Gov  Brown - WIB Workforce Letter (003)
	20161130 Rogue Valley Partnership Best Practices - Draft Report to Gov Brown
	Copy of 20161213 Dashboard - WSRV Template Draft
	Sheet1

	Copy of Dashboard
	Sheet1

	Copy of 2015-2016 JOBS Dashboard For July 2016 District 8 (Autosaved) (version 1)
	District 8 Data  
	Placements
	Participation & SS Breakdown
	OFSET

	Workforce & Education System Performance Overview PY 12
	Financial data for local implementation planning PY 12
	Tech_Tour_FINAL
	Tech Tour Exit Survey Results
	Tech Tour Exit Survey Results

	20161215 RAMP Presentation for RWP Handout
	Rogue Life Way Thing Living scope project outline



